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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in session.
Today's date is December the 4 th . The time is 1:32. The Chair would like to recognize the
Members that are present this afternoon. We do have Member Carroll, Member Baisa,
Member Cochran, Member Couch, and Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good afternoon. Absent...not absent but excused at this time are
Members Hokama, Members White, and Chairman Mateo. From the Administration, we do
have from Corporation Counsel, Jeff Ueoka, our Budget Director, Mr. Sandy Baz
MR. BAZ: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and our Real Property Tax Division Head, Mr. Scott Teruya. Supporting the
Committee, we do have Scott Kaneshina, Michele Yoshimura, and Camille Sakamoto.
Members, we do have like three items on the agenda this afternoon. We do have one person
signed up for public testimony. Two items. At this time, the Chair is going to accept public
testimony. For those of you who are providing public testimony this afternoon, you have three
minutes to provide your testimony, one minute to conclude. If you can state your name,
organization that you represent, the Committee would appreciate that. But before we take public
testimony, if everyone of us could turn our cell phone to the off position or silent mode. Okay,
the only person signed up for public testimony this afternoon is Mr. Tom Croly. Mr. Croly.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MR. CROLY: Aloha, Chair. Aloha, Committee members. In keeping with this morning's meetings,
knowing that this is probably the last time I'll testify with you during this Council term, I want to
thank each and every one of the Council members personally for their consideration of the items
that I brought to your attention over the past year, particularly for the passage of the short-term
rental ordinance the past two years as Mr. Couch makes clear, the passage of the short-term
rental ordinance and your willingness to give consideration to how to make this all work. I
particularly wanna express my appreciation to the Chair, who this might be the last time that I'm
addressing you as a sitting Council member for your consideration during your entire tenure here
of ten years. And I do appreciate that both as a representative for Maui Vacation Rental
Association and also as a citizen, the ten years that you've devoted to the County and to the
Budget, chairing the Budget, which is not an easy task. I really appreciate your efforts. Today, I
am testifying on behalf of the Maui Vacation Rental Association and I'd like to make comment
about BF-72. There's two components to B-72 that's before you today. One of them deals with
the way short-term rentals and TVRs would be classified for real tax...real property tax
purposes. My understanding is you're not going to deal with that portion of BF-72 today and I
appreciate that. The second component relates to the reporting requirements for the
classification of condo units for real property tax purposes. And I support the intent of those
who are not correctly identifying their use but advertising on the Internet offering their condo for
short-term rental that the County have the ability to assess them, tax them properly. So I do
support that intent. However, there's other aspects to that measure that, I think, need more
discussion among the folks who would be most affected, those AOAOs and the reporting
procedures that are required by them. And I'm not sure if...I don't see them in the room. I'm
not sure if they're on board with everything. Despite the fact that you will not be taking action
on the part affecting STR taxation, I'd like to speak to the effect that this has had and will have
on those seeking to be granted short-term rental permits. So far we've had 63 people make
applications for a short-term rental permit that this Council created back in May. And I'm
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personally aware of dozens of other owners who would like to make application but are holding
off because they're unsure of what the tax classification is going to be and they wanna know
before going into this what the full effect is going to be on them. I also am aware of some folks
trying to decide--who are owners who live here on island--whether they want to apply as a bed
and breakfast, which requires them to live on their property or if they want to apply as a
short-term rental that would not require them to live full-time on their property. But, again, they
need to know the tax status before they know whether to move forward. So I urge this Council
to take up this issue in the Budget Committee of the new Council just as soon as possible so that
we can put some certainty to what's...what the implications of getting a permit are going to be.
I've spoken to each of you about the proposal that the Maui Vacation Rental Association
supports, and that is that the buildings on properties granted a short-term rental permit are taxed
at the Hotel rate, but that the underlying land stays at the rate of its zoning category. If that
underlying land is in the Ag District it would be the Ag rate. If that underlying land is in the
Apartment District it would be the Apartment rate. It could be in almost any of the zoning
categories that we have. I won't go into the reasons for that right now in this testimony. I'll
have discussions with you each separately on why I believe that that's a fair way of going about
this. But when we move forward with this issue in the next term, I'd like you to consider that as
a good option. Thank you again for your service and thanks for the time in this meeting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Tom. Members, questions for Mr. Croly? Seeing none, thank you
for that comments. Is there anyone in the audience that would like to provide public testimony?
Seeing none, if there's no objection, Members, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we do have two items on the agenda.

ITEM BF 72:
-

REAL PROPERTY TAX LAND CLASSIFICATION (cc

11 314)
-

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The first item this afternoon is B-72, Real Property Tax Land Classification.
And the purpose of the proposed bill is to classify properties subdivided into condominium units.
which are not classified as Time Shares or Commercialized Residential as Hotel and Resort
when those units are advertised for occupancy by transient tenants for periods of less than six
consecutive months. And one of the issues that brought up this proposal is that we had several
complaints in regards to people renting out their units as time shares. And also, the people that
are affected by it do have an appeal process that they can go through. One of the things that, you
know, we just had our Bond Rating for the County of Maui and the rating was double-A plus,
which is the best in the State. And one of the things that they really look at is the ability of this
County to protect the revenue source that we have and to gain revenues. So, at this time, the
Chair would like to turn to Mr., Budget Director, Mr. Baz, for any comments.
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MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And good afternoon, Members. The Administration's understanding
of the intent of BF-72 is to provide a tool for the Department of Finance to be able to go after
individuals that are residing in condos or their own condos that are advertising short-term rentals,
those rentals that are less than six months, and then they would be classified in the Hotel/Resort
classification instead of in the Residential tax classification. And, Mr. Chair, based on that
understanding we have no comment necessarily for or against this at this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Teruya, you have any comments?
MR. TERUYA: Yeah, thank you, Chair and Members. The Real Property Tax Division, we're in
support of this amendment as it provides the Division with additional tools with dealing with
complaints and compliance in the Condominium Declaration or the classification. This measure
also safeguards the home exemption program. The short-term renting of homes receiving a
home exemption violates the Code, and this amendment will assist with the compliance efforts.
The proposed bill also provides direction in handling condo projects that do not...have not filed
with the annual report. The projects continue to withhold the annual report. This would give us
an opportunity to classify them in accordance with the highest and best use. I would also point
out that whenever a parcel is reclassified the amended notice states that the owners have 30 days
to file an appeal of receipt of the notice. That's all I have, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the Department or the Director?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Teruya, it's...I like everything in here. It's
really good and concise. My concern is Section 1, Number v or C 1 v. It says if the required
annual report is not filed on or before December 31 st , the director shall classify all units in the
project. I live in a condo complex and I know how AOAO boards are. Sometimes they don't
meet very often or have their annual meetings in January. My concern is if the AOAO board for
some reason doesn't meet the December 1 5 ` date then everybody's kind of stuck in the Hotel rate.
If they don't appeal, each of one of us would have to go and appeal the classification. And is
there a charge for that appeal? And, you know, if they happen to be out of town for...generally
between December and January people are going to be out of town for Christmas vacation or
whatever and they don't get the notice in time then they're stuck. So my concern is how is that
going to be...how would that be affected or conversely can we change the "shall" to "may" and
would that help you?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chair. First of all, I would be in agreement in changing "shall" to "may". I
would also like to tell you that out of 257 projects, only 15 haven't complied. Our staff has
worked with every condominium in trying to make sure that they file the annual report. We
weren't so hard on the December 1 st deadline although we would appreciate it by December r t .
As long as we've been in contact, I think, Marcy could probably attest to that is we've given
-4-
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them as much time as they needed in the first year. It's just there's only 15 of them that haven't
replied back. So if anybody needed more time we had absolutely no problem with extending the
deadline. But, you know, I think, for the most part 95 percent of the condominiums are
reporting.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, it's good to hear.
MR. TERUYA: So, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well if we change it to "may" I'm okay with that, but if right now it
says "shall" and we put this in there you don't have a chance to extend the deadline then.
MR. TERUYA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Members, in regards to this particular ordinance should we move
it on or should we agree today, Chair is gonna go for a discharge on this Friday so that we can
take up issues like that amendment that Mr. Couch is being presently being proposed at that
meeting. So we can make that amendment during first reading.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, that's when the amendment would have to be made, not right now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. We can have this discussion so that when we bring it forward to be
discharged then we'll take up your amendment. Mr. Teruya.
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chair. I would like to also report for the Members this was our first year
that we actually started using the AOAO report in doing some of our investigations. So, we
do...we can report that the 720 letters resulted in 965,000 in additional revenues where we did
confirm that the use was something higher than they originally had on paper.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Teruya, Mr. Baz, or
even myself at this time in regards to the movement of this particular ordinance? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: I think I understand, but I just want to make it clear if the reason why we
cannot do that amendment now is because of the Committee Report?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Part of it, yeah, because we won't have time from now until Friday -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Friday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to do the Committee Report to have everything properly documented. But
from first reading to second reading we have that ability.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And just a question on or just in your honor a real fast question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you by the way. This is our last meeting so you can say whatever you
want.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Since we don't have anything about short-term rentals in here and we
did this year pass the short-term rental law, what are you going to be doing short-term rentals as?
I'm assuming it's going to be Commercialized Residential, but I'm not sure.
MR. TERUYA: Okay. In my...I think Corporation Counsel can correct me if I'm wrong. But
Commercialized Residential only addresses...you can only fall in Commercialized Residential if
you have a Conditional Use Permit for a B&B or a TVR. That's the only people who will be
there. So short-term rentals, if I understand what the short-term rental bill is, they would be
classified as Hotel/Resort.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, and that was one of the things that we had a little concern about
because of some of the things that they...the amenities they don't have as a hotel or resort. So I
would have a little concern as to that until we get, I mean, this has to pass by December 31 st for
your classification next year. If we come up with something in the next three, four months that
won't happen until the following year. Is that correct? Oh. Okay, and, Mr. Chair, I do have a
concern then and my concern would be, and this is something we'd have to talk about for a long
time is where to throw short-term rentals and because Hotel/Resort have...they have a lot more
amenities than...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand and please understand what one of the only testifier testified in
regards to when we do that, the possibility of looking at the building itself is considered as hotel.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And the underlying area, you know, as being considered whatever it is.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's ultimately what I'd like to propose, but we don't really want
to do that here -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --because that's a long discussion. So my concern is for that...that
means this next year they're all going to be...the whole thing is going to bill Hotel/Resort.
-6-
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So whoever is coming back next year can bring up Bill BF-72 again -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to address that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. But it won't take effect until the following year?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly, yeah. Gotta be passed by December 31 St .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Unless is there any kind of direction we can give Mr. Teruya or policy
without putting in an ordinance saying, hey, look, let's look at another classification for right
now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Corporation Counsel can help us.
MR. UEOKA: I would not advise you give a policy to the Real Property Tax Division. If...Council
should probably make a change to the ordinance. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I do have a little bit of concern about it. Let me think about that
if other people want to talk.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much. I'm in the same position as Mr. Couch. I'm
concerned that there will be this one year where everybody will be stuck at a Hotel rate and that
could be very harmful and very hurtful. That's a lot of money while we try to figure out what to
do with this. So our choices are...I'm trying to figure out what the choices are.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well for the Chair, you know, I would like to move along to support this
County in regards to the revenue stream and to ensure that, you know, those individuals that are
not paying their proper taxes to this County are being, you know, addressed.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I totally understand the idea that I want people that should be
paying to pay because nobody should be getting away. You know, a lot of us pay fairly and
whatever we pay, everybody else should pay fairly. But, you know, if we're going to at some
point consider a new classification so that you would have Hotel and Resort and you would have
Commercialized Residential and then you would having something in between that, you know, a
year is a long time to cough up a lot of money. So it's kind of scary. But I do understand the
need for the money and I do understand for everybody to pay fair. My dilemma is we're going
have to make a decision now and we really haven't talked about it enough.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, any more questions? The Chair would like to recognize the presence of
Member White as well as Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions for the Administration at this time regarding this
particular ordinance? Mr. Victorino followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Mr. Teruya, I guess, the question I have for you is all this
time what have we been charging condominiums? I mean, I know the answer but, I mean, the
public is probably asking that question right now.
MR. TERUYA: Chair, in the condominium there's categories for condominiums. It's Apartment, it's
Commercial, there's Hotel/Resort, there's Time Share, and Homeowner.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. TERUYA: So, those are the five that we have now. All properties that are used for periods of less
than six months are considered Hotel and Resort. I mean, maybe the title is not good but it's the
use of short-term rental that puts you in that category.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And how much do you estimate of the total number of
condos falls in that particular category? You know, a rough percent. I mean, you would have
that information.
MR. TERUYA: About 9,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Of?
MR. TERUYA: Nine thousand of 22,000 condominiums.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, approximately one...almost a third. That would be more than
a third. Okay, okay. But I just wanted to get clarification, Mr. Chair, 'cause, I know there's no
such thing as a condominium classification but those condos fall into different classification.
And just so the public understands what we're trying to do here and that they're not confused
now. How come they're talking about condos when we thought we've had condos for many
years? But it's the classification and making it a short-term rental. That's what we are referring
to right now. Is that correct, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Teruya.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, I would like to request, I guess, for the meeting if we could do it,
is this how we can do it to get that from "shall" to "may"?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Shall we do a PAF or request the Staff to do a floor amendment PAF?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can do that for Friday if you want.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, any more questions for Mr. Teruya or Mr. Baz at this time, or even
Mr. Ueoka? If there's no more questions, Chair would like to make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTAN1LLA: Thank you. Because this legislation will need to pass second and final reading
by December 31, 2012, to have an impact on the tax years beginning on or after July 1, 2013, the
proposed bill needs to be considered at first reading at the December 7 th meeting with second and
final at the December 21 st meeting. The Chair's recommendation is to defer the pending further
discussion, and I have submitted a request for a discharge, County Communication 12-248,
pending on the December 7 th Council agenda.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: DAM)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
ITEM BF-104:

BILL 97 (2010), RELATING TO REAL PROPERTY TAX REVIEW
BOARDS (BILL 97 (2010))

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next item on the agenda is BF-104, Bill 97 (2010), Relating to Real
Property Tax Review Boards. The purpose of the Bill 97 (2010) is to establish up to three Real
Property Tax Review Boards to assist with the backlog and timely processing of real property tax
appeals. There are no longer a need for the additional Review Boards since the Real Property
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Tax Division was able to take care of the backlog of the appeals. And at this time, I'd like to call
on Mr. Teruya for some comments.
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chair. Committee members, we have completed all of our backlogs to date
at the local level. At the Board Review, there are zero cases before and pending.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's great.
MR. TERUYA: And furthermore, at the Tax Appeal Court level, we have been able to settle many of
the cases at the Tax Appeal Court level that we had the chance to. There remains maybe about
19 or 20 more cases. But, I think, we are at an all-time low over the last five years with litigated
count at somewhere about $2.7 million. So, I think, this is an all-time low for us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good, thank you. Any more questions for the Department? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't have a question, but I do want to say congratulations. This is a
big difference from when I came six years ago. You guys have made tremendous progress and
congratulations. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yep. So the question is this is an ordinance already and we're just
getting rid of the communication. Is that what we're doing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It was a proposed ordinance that went to first reading, but we haven't taken up
on the second and final. And the reason to that was back in 2010 when we had this logjam. The
Chairman at that time, Mr. Frampton, had his...that commission working, I don't know, twice a
week, I guess, trying to get the backlog down. So he promised to get it down, which he did.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, I commend Mr. Frampton and the Commissioners at that time for taking
care of the backlog.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. If I can ask Mr. Teruya, has most of the resolutions
by the Review Boards supporting the County's position on evaluation and the total tax amount?
Or well, let me ask how was most of the decisions settled?
MR. TERUYA: Well, I think, as you know in two years ago we were probably at about 4,000 appeals.
And, you know, a lot of those appeals although the numbers were high they were project
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specific. So, you know, there were a lot of time shares appeals in there. So when we hear a case
and you may be hearing about a hundred appeals just on one project. So the numbers went down
quickly as soon as we had time to get the hearing first of all. In order to hear cases you gotta
have Board members. You know, having quorum was our biggest challenge in 2008, '09, '10.
So, I think, over the last year with Chair Frampton made a commitment to hearing approximately
100 or 150 cases per hearing, which took them a lot longer than what we were normally used to.
So that alone brought the numbers down along with stipulations that we, were adjusted for at the
appraiser level that they saw fit. So, you know, like I said, majority of our cases were time
shares in the 2008 to 2010 years where we had major, I would say about 2,000 of them were time
share appeals. So that went relatively quickly as soon as we could schedule the hearing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And at this time as far as looking forward to the new budget cycle,
you don't see any major issues coming up for the new budget considerations regarding valuation
and tax rates within that particular category?
MR. TERUYA: You know what, at this time, our numbers are still preliminary. I would say that it
would be safe to see a very flat assessment year coming up. Inventory may be better than last
year, but I don't see that to be spiking anything that would be...see any large increases in
valuations in any one category. So I would say it would be very premature but at the same time
it would be very...pretty confident that the values would be relatively flat.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Any changes in our major Hotel/Resort category, especially with the fire
sale at Kapalua?
MR. TERUYA: At this time, we don't see the Hotel valuations going down. I would say that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much and good work to your Division on getting the
County squared away on these appeals. Much appreciated. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I also will echo the same congratulatory message
to you, Mr. Teruya, and the rest of the...Sandy and the rest of the Department. Also,
Mr. Agsalog. And, I think, it proves one thing, Mr. Chair, when we give our departments the
proper tools and manpower, we can take care the problems. I think sometimes we can be our
worse enemies as far as cutting back, cutting back when we should not, especially when you
talking our revenue-driven divisions, yeah. And, I think, that's a lesson that we gotta keep in
mind for the future. But what I wanted to ask you, Mr. Teruya, and Mr. Hokama covered about
three of the questions I had so that helps that. By just filing this communication now and getting
rid of it, you know, basically we still have the ability to up the need if the need was to arise. I
mean, right now we're good, but in two years or so let's say something drastically changed and
all of a sudden, we can still, you can still at that point up and get going again, you know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Teruya.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Or is it...no? I guess, the question is...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, from my understanding the action would make this specific bill go away.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Should the need arise in the future, the Administration could propose a new bill to Council
that would, you know, enact the same thing, you know, whether more boards or whatever. But it
will be up to us to, you know, ask for that again.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, but if we had...if we just...if we didn't do away with it and it
was there but, and I know you're saying you don't need it, but if it's there, if you need it at any
like, two or three years from now, or next year something crazy happens and all of a sudden you
need it, instead of coming back and redoing it, is there a reason why you gonna get rid of it then
and that's my question? I mean, if you're gonna do away with it is there a good reason why?
MR. BAZ: I guess, from our understanding of proposing Code changes, it would be a very similar
process whether it stays on as an item in this Committee or if we have to re-transmit it. It just
would be referred to the Council Chair again, and then the Council Chair would refer it to this
Committee or whatever Committee it sees fit as far as any Code changes in the future. So it may
save a couple of weeks in processing if we keep it on as a budget item agenda, but it's really up
to the Members here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, I guess, the other question I have, Mr. Baz, is if we left it,
would it be a cost item? Would it cost us anything or it's just there when needed we can call it
up and you don't have to go back and start all over again or even go through a two or three week
process or a month or whatever it might take? That's my question. Is there a cost involved if we
keep it and if not?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry I'm looking towards the maybe the Committee Chair because that would be
something if any cost would be incurred would be incurred probably on Council Services side
and the cost of holding it within Council.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I'm saying if we just left in there, is there a cost involved
leaving it right now?
MR. BAZ: I wouldn't know that answer. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair. I'm sorry. Maybe I don't mean to.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I really don't understand the question right now.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I apologize. Maybe that's my problem. If we did not do
away with this ordinance and left it as is, would there be a cost involved to just keep everything
status quo?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Probably not. And, you know, why should we leave this ordinance in there?
We always can come up and request for another one through PAF, you know, when the time
arise rather than just keep this thing hanging because we already went to first reading.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I guess, that's not satisfying me because all I'm asking
is...I know this works. We, you know, seen the results. So why do away with it? Why not
leave it in existence so when the need is in the future we don't have to go through another
meeting, another PAF? That was my question. And if there was a cost involved then I'd
understand why you want to do away with it.
MR. UEOKA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's what I'm asking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait.
MR. UEOKA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel first.
MR. UEOKA: Could we have a short recess, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure, short recess. Everybody sit exactly where you are. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

2:05 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:07 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. My understanding that we always have a Review Board that will be taking up tax
appeals. And again, the reason why we came up with this was that because of the backlog two
years ago, that huge backlog. So we do have presently a Real Property Tax Review Board and
they've been doing their job diligently. So, okay, any more questions? So the Chair would like
to make his recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Chair's recommendation is to file this item. Okay, any
objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, the final thing that we need to take care of this afternoon is
referrals for...
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: The previous item we need to take a vote on that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wasn't it auto filed ...(inaudible)...?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, it's not. Okay. Okay, I need a motion to move forward the proposed bill,
Bill 97 (2010) Relating to Real Property Tax Review Boards.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, moved by Member Couch. Any second? No second?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Cochran. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All in favor of...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait, wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So this is in order so we can...and it is not going to audit obviously
automatic files. So this will file on the 21 st meeting of the 21 st . Is that right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
- 14-
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I have one more question for the Division and I'll try to
make it simple. Division, Mr. Teruya, as this sits now, would you prefer having this option
available to you than have to, you know, and again, I see it as being a positive thing, Mr. Chair.
I do. And now, to say Oahu has this and others. So if backlogs come they don't have to come
back to Council. Boom...they just go and establish the other Review Boards to keep things
moving. Now, I know these guys work their tail off and, you know, maybe we can have other
groups work their tail off. But if it didn't, why have to...again, we have a lot of stuff we need to
do and, to me, this is one of those that I really don't see us have to doing it. We don't have to do
this again. I know this is a small stick in the mud and again I apologize for that. But,
Mr. Teruya, if we left it as what it is and left that ordinance in place...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I have Mr. Teruya answer that question I'd like to call on
Mr. Kaneshina.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Kaneshina then.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, thinking back 'cause I just started when this
first kind of was in Council and then got bounced around for a little while. And I did some
research earlier today and what it came down to was Director Young back then facing that, I
think, it was a $19 million backlog, proposed that one of the ideas might be to create the ability
to create multiple Review Boards. So that bill was run through the Budget Committee. It was
passed out of Committee, recommended for passage on first reading. It passed on first reading.
At first reading though, I think, it was Mr. Frampton who sits on one of the...on the Board came
in and said he appreciated the intent, but ultimately it wouldn't necessarily fix the problem of
backlogs, 'cause having multiple boards doesn't necessarily prevent backlogs from happening.
He said the issue was really related to getting quorum for the existing Board. So he
recommended an alternate, which was to appoint alternative members in one board. But creating
multiple boards would just further dilute your quorum. So, with that, I think, Member Pontanilla
put it on the Clerk's desk for a date certain. He allowed RPT and the boards to or the Board to
mull through their backlog and report back. And then in March, I think, they reported back and
they said they got through a pretty good amount of their backlog. And then it just got referred to
Budget Committee. Member Pontanilla continued to monitor it and it appeared that, I think,
Mr. Teruya said that they're down to like $2 million in appeals...down from about...it was about
19 to 20. So here it is in front of the body. It's a bill. It passed first reading. The question is do
we file it now or do you just leave it on the Council agenda? Based on Mr. Frampton's
recommendation, it didn't appear that he necessarily liked the proposal. He would've wanted
something different. So I think, that's the reason why the proposal now is to file.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Teruya.
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MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chair. In addressing Mr. Victorino's question, I would concur with
Dean Frampton's assessment of that is. We really needed alternate members in the event that
quorum couldn't be reached. I think that is the main objective of what we wanted. You know, I
think, that's one of the reasons why we got into the backlog situation is just the Board couldn't
meet. So, whatever measure it would take to have the opportunity to have alternate members so
that quorum is met, I think, that is ultimately the goal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I would suggest that next year's Council bring this thing up
again and talk about having alternates on the Board so that there is a quorum whenever they
meet. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Short recess. Real short.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, recess. . . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

2:14 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:14 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.
Members, any more questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I know you see this very simply, Chairman. So forgive some of
us. So let me ask Mr. Teruya real quick. How did you folks address the component of the
alternates to assist in securing quorum for the Board since my understanding is normally we
gotta address the Code, right, on the Board make up and how they get selected and everything
else? So, how did you folks accomplish that?
MR. TERUYA: Well, we didn't address it. It never got to the point where we can have...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The Members just showed up to make quorum then?
MR. TERUYA: Yes, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: By a strong presiding officer saying you have to show up to conduct the
business you agreed to be sitting on. Is that how Mr. Frampton kind of approached it?
MR. TERUYA: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, then, Chairman, if this bill is the vehicle then would we want to
consider referring this to the next Council and use this vehicle to address the alternates to this
Board and use this as a vehicle then to adjust the Code to allow that option in the future to have
alternate members appointed to this Board to maintain quorum and the ability to conduct
business?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We could and also we could address it with a new Council with a new
process.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, for me, Chair, I would prefer to just refer this to the next Council
since you've already done some good work. We have information regarding this subject matter.
And, I think, we half way home already so that...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the whole intent was just to close this out, because, you know, based on
the recommendation by Mr. Frampton that, you know, we don't need an additional board. But,
again, at the same time though, we talked about having alternate members for the Board. But if
that's the will of the body then, you know, I have no problems as far as referring it to Mr. White.
Okay, any more discussion? Then I would ask that the maker of the motion withdraw so that we
can.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I withdraw the motion, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. So, the motion is withdrawn. So, the Chair is gonna refer
this to next year's Council, Budget and Finance Committee. Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: We're gonna vote.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair, I move to refer Item 104 to the upcoming Council Chair for deferral
to appropriate standing Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Mr. Hokama, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Any more discussion?
All in favor of the motion, say "aye".
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending REFERRAL of communication to the Council Chair for
the term beginning January 2, 2013, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Rules of
Council.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The final thing that we need to take care of this afternoon is the referrals for
next term.
COMMUNICATIONS FOR REFERRAL TO THE COUNCIL CHAIR
FOR THE TERM BEGINNING JANUARY 2, 2013,
PURSUANT TO RULE 23 OF THE RULES OF THE COUNCIL
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think everybody got a copy of the Chair's referral list. And, at this time, the
Chair is looking for a motion to recommend that the communication as listed on today's agenda
be referred to Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2013, pursuant to Rule 23 of the
Rules of the Council.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I make the motion, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any discussion, Members? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a question on the three audit ones BF-16, 17, and 49. Is that
something that the new auditor would do or is that still something we would do in-house?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we don't have an auditor right now.
-18-
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not yet, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So if they hire an auditor then, I think, it will be up to next year's Council to
decide. But for now, it's going to be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions? Okay, motion made by Mr. Hokama, seconded by
Mr. Victorino. There's no more discussion. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is...any noes? Motion is carried with eight ayes, one excused,
Chairman Mateo.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Balsa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending REFERRAL of communications to the Council Chair for
the term beginning January 2, 2013, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Rules of
Council.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, before we adjourn I wanna thank the Administration, especially
Mr. Baz for your diligent work in Budget. Also, Mr. Agsalog, the Finance Director,
Mr. Jeff Ueoka from Corporation Counsel, and Mr. Scott Teruya from our Real Property Tax
Division. Also, I'd like to thank our Committee Staff, Scott, Michele, and Camille, for sticking
out with me for the last what two years... four years maybe. And also, you know, Members, for
your productive work the last two years for serving on this Budget and Finance Committee.
So...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White, you got any comments?
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'd just like to point out that in the past two years, while your hair
has gotten grayer, the Staff's is still dark. No, I would just like to thank you for your leadership
through the last couple of years. This is certainly a daunting Committee to Chair and I've
appreciated your steady hand at the tiller. So, mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'll be watching you when you deliberate on the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We'll get you a new subscription to Akaku.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll turn off the TV though after 9 o'clock. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, Chair, I wanna thank you for the years of leadership that
you've put forth on this Budget and Finance Committee and as the Vice-Chair. I have been
extremely honored to work with you, all the Members. But, you know, you have from the day I
walked in always been one of those that had the reason for and made sure you made the
explanation as crystal clear as possible and so that we could understand. And as rookies and now
as little what I consider veterans, on a little smaller scale, even though I still get confused once in
a while, but not your fault. I really appreciate everything you've taught myself through the
years. And, you know, I'm gonna truly miss you. I know, Mike will step in and do a great job.
There's not a question in my mind, but replacing the legend is really hard. That's really hard and
without the gray hair. Mike, start getting your hair a little bit more gray so that I can feel more
comfortable. But, God bless you, Chair, and thank you very much for everything you've done
for us and this community at large.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. And the guy that I really learned from,
Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I knew you was going next to him so that's why I figured I'd talk.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, Chairman, all I can say is that, I think, through the ten years serving
with you, especially on this Committee, I have seen you grown in your understanding of County
budget, County borrowing, County taxation. Trying to be fair with the mandated requirements
of the Charter and yet being, I would say compassionate to those financial requests, whether it be
from the nonprofit sector or private sector of our County, to be willing to at least listen and
understand from their perspective why they're putting forth a request to the Council for financial
assistance. I think you've worked very hard, Chairman Pontanilla. I believe in your first year
when you joined us, you know, I had very strict parameters, I think, nothing more than 25
million borrowing in total. We were looking at making major cuts. I've, I made major increases
in tax revenue projections and tax rates. But through it all and with your support, I think, you
have learned that we've made very correct and right financial decisions that gives us now
opportunities of choice in this year and in the years that will be preceding us shortly. And, I
think, you should take pride that you have helped place the County in a position of choice and
not one of having to do the only thing left for the County. I think we can be proud of where we
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stand in our Bond Rating with our peers in the State but nationally also. I think we can take
pride in how we have approached our responsibilities and obligations, especially those unfunded
obligations we talk about a lot, Chairman. You have taken great strides in making sure that that
will not be a hindrance in us to have future financial options as we need to grow infrastructure
facilities, labor force, to provide this Committee with the type of services that they not only
deserve, but it is part of who we are as a people and a lifestyle that we protect wanna continue to
preserve for the future generations. So, I thank you. I thank your family for allowing them to
share you with us for have you provide the service you have given our community. And I wanna
thank you from Lanai and also the rest of the County for the service you have given. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. One thing I learned during budget when I first got
here, I was one of those guys that said no to this, no to that. In fact, he had initials on the side so
when we came back the next day, he would call on people that had questions. And, I think, I had
initials on almost every single line. So, I, you know, it was an experience in the sense, you
know, you come from private industry to government and totally different. So, I learned from
the master. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And to paraphrase you "one fast comment".
Pretty much everything they said is how I feel as well and I really appreciate being a freshmen
and learning how to do the budget under your tutelage. So, thank you very much and good luck
on what you're doing next.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And, yeah, it has been a definite honor and privilege to
be working with you the last couple of years. We'll miss you a lot, and during the budget
process especially, I thought you were very open-minded and very fair as best as you can 'cause
it is a pretty daunting task as Mr. White mentioned. So I just wanna say thank you for West
Maui, all of the things that you helped fight with me for, and received, so, I know that you're that
you're always there. Your door was always open for questioning that I might have had and you
sat and you listened and you gave me great comments and guidance. So I wanna thank you for
that. And enjoy the holidays. And again, as Mr. Hokama said, thanks to your family too 'cause
it is a, you know, a sacrifice they have to give on their part to let you be here with us all the time.
And I'm gonna miss the traveling buddy that you are when we go with NACo and abroad and
you've been really fun and great to travel with and definitely to learn from. So thank you, and
all the best in the New Year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Thank you for all the work that you've
put into being our Budget Chair. It's a very, very tough load to fill. No matter what you do, you
make some people happy, and some people unhappy, and that must be, you know, very stressful.
And having to put in just the sheer time that is required and the effort to be familiar with our
County's finances and to understand how all this works, I mean, that alone is a very, very
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difficult job. And thank you very much for all you've done. I do want to advise the gentlemen
on this Council that gray hair is not necessarily an indication of age. There are wonderful
hairdressers on Maui and I can make a recommendation if anybody needs one, because, you
know, being the eldest I try not to let my hair be gray. But anyway, I do, Chair, want to wish
you all the best. I don't know what your future endeavors are. Knowing you, I'm sure you're
not going be sitting in a rocking chair. But whatever you're going to do I wish you all the best
and I wish you much health and happiness and great holidays. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And Member Baisa, I recall Kahi Kamalii.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That was my first request.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I want to tell you that it keeps going today and it is serving the
infants of Maui, and that's your legacy as long as we can keep it going. You know, you have
something to be very proud of 'cause without you it would never have happened. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. It's been a pleasure working with you all these
years. And I would like to wish you and your family a happy and prosperous new year and
aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, I'd be...well what made my job really easy as a
Council member was having really good Staff And, you know, Michele has been with me for
almost ten years; Scott, four years; and Camille this past couple of years. But prior to Camille
being the Secretary for the Budget and Finance Committee, I had Yvette Bouthillier as the
Secretary, and I really want to thank her also in regards to supporting this Committee while I was
Budget and Finance Committee Chairman. So with that, Members, this as being our last meeting
as Budget and Finance, I really wish Mr. White, you know, good luck. Don't have too long
meetings, but you do have really, really good Council members that really can support you as
well as from the Administration. And you got these people back to support you. So with that
the...Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If you don't mind just one fast comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think your points are very well taken. Great Staff makes things go
much easier and the Staff keeps us out of trouble. And like you, I will have Mr. Hokama as
Vice-Chair. And in between his travels to the mainland on NACo business and to the State
Capitol, I'm going to be doing the same thing, leaning on him for his expertise and his...all of
his background knowledge and, you know, historical perspectives and that's always going to be
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very useful to us. So I just want to thank you again for leaving the Committee in good shape and
just echo what Mr. Hokama said about the fiscal responsibility that you have shown because it
has allowed us choices as Mr. Hokama points out. That's a great spot to be in. So mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I not going make one fast comment. I'm sorry. A long
comment. You know, one more thing. One of the things that has always impressed me with you
has been your ability to work with whatever Administration was there and that was another thing
that, I think, you brought to the table, your willingness to have an open door with no matter
which Director, no matter which Department, no matter which Administration. I think that's a
quality that's...is not easily obtained. You know, you have to work at it and, I know, Mr. White
will complement the same attribute. But, you know, you brought that. And again, as I told you
this morning, your integrity and that's something I always treasured because you would tell me
straight...yep, no, why. And you always had a good reason why. And that's something I really
do, like with all the other Members, I treasure when somebody can tell me right to my face and
the reason why. You know, whether I agree with it or not that's not the issue but at least they
have their reasoning. And, I think, that's something I will miss with you. And so, no matter
what you do, no matter where you go, like I told you this morning, the phone is available. I'm
going to be looking for you. I got your cell number. I know where you live. I will, if I need
help, I will call. And I just hopefully you don't hang up too quickly. Give me a fast answer.
How's that sound?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I'll give you three minutes with one minute to conclude.
ALL: . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's fair enough, Chair. That's fair enough. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for December the 4 th is now
adjourned. . .(gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 2:32 p.m.
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